Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Council
Wednesday, 14th October, 2020
6.00 pm.
Zoom / YouTube

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Mayor's Communications
The Civic Mayor to make any appropriate announcements.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

4

Minutes
To authorise the signing of the minutes of the meeting of the Council
held on 15 July and 2 September 2020.

5

Public Questions and Petitions
To receive petitions and questions from members of the public, where
these have been received in accordance with the Petitions Scheme
and/or Council Procedure Rules.

6 - 10

6

Notices of Motion
To consider Motions submitted in accordance with Council Procedure
Rule 11.
a) Birthing Unit
To be moved by Councillor Rana, seconded by Councillor Zaheer
Since the closure of the local Maternity Ward mothers from Rochdale
have had to travel to Oldham or to North Manchester to give birth
unless they opt for a home-birth. Home births are not a viable option
for every family. This Council calls for the establishment of a one-bed
Midwife-led Birthing Unit in Rochdale to enable a new generation of
children to be born in Rochdale. A Midwife-led Birthing Unit for
uncomplicated births would meet the needs of the community and go
some way towards ensuring that most Rochdale women can give birth
in their home town. This model has already been adopted successfully
at Ingleside in Salford.
b) Recover, Retrain, Rebuild
To be moved by Councillor O’Rourke, seconded by Councillor Burke
The Council notes the scheme announced by the Chancellor of the
Exchequer on 24/09/2020 whereby the Job Retention Scheme in place
since March 2020 and October 2020, where the Government covered
80% of wages if workers could not work due to Covid-19 will cease,
and a new scheme where 22% of wages will be covered as long as at
least one third of normal hours are worked.
The Council believes that while the Job Retention Scheme was a
historic investment of taxpayers' money to avert widespread job
losses, this massive, unprecedented investment will, essentially, go to
waste as millions of people, including thousands in the Borough of
Rochdale, who have suffered throughout the Covid-19 crisis, now face
the very real prospect of unemployment as their jobs are not viable to
return to at this moment in time under Covid-19.
This Council believes we need a strategy that focuses on recovering
jobs, retraining workers and rebuilding our country. This strategy must
involve:
1) A job Recovery Scheme that allows staff to work reduced hours,
with the Government subsidising a proportion of wages for the
rest of the week. The scheme should be designed to reward

companies who bring back more workers part-time, rather than
bringing some back full-time and letting others go.
2) A nationwide Retraining Strategy for the unemployed and those
facing unemployment. This strategy must help those whose
hours have been cut to increase their skills to retrain, and
enable people who have lost jobs to transition into new work.
3) A business Rebuilding Scheme which must give businesses,
who have taken advantage of Government loan schemes, the
payments for which start in March, the confidence and security
that they will be able to continue operating past March 2021, or
else a whole new set of businesses and workers may well be
pushed back underneath then. The Council therefore instructs
the Chief Executive to write to the Prime Minister and the
Chancellor of the Exchequer to revisit their scheme, work with
business and trade unions and create one that will help our
towns, borough and country recover, retrain and rebuild.
c) Council contacts
To be moved by Councillor Howard, seconded by Councillor Paolucci
That the Council introduce a facility to offer all residents wishing to
access the Council's services, the option of doing so by more
traditional means, namely via the postal service and the telephone,
alongside web access and e-mail links. This would also be included in
all of the authority's marketing materials thereby ensuring that no one
in the Borough is excluded from accessing Council services, especially
the elderly and vulnerable, whose access to and understanding of the
Internet may be more limited.
7

Non-attendance at meetings

11 - 13

To consider the attached report seeking approval to temporarily waive
the requirements of the 1972 Local Government Act.
8

Overview and Scrutiny - Annual Report 2019/2020
To receive the annual report 2019/2020 of the Council’s three
Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

14 - 22

9

Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2019/20

23 - 33

To consider the attached annual report of the Audit and Governance
Committee
10

34 - 40

Special Urgency decisions
To receive notification of decisions taken under special urgency
provisions.

11

Appointment of Monitoring Officer
To consider appointment of a Monitoring Officer

Council Members
Councillor Ali Ahmed
Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor Tom Besford
Councillor John Blundell
Councillor Allen Brett
Councillor Wendy Cocks
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor Richard Farnell
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Michael Holly
Councillor Jane Howard
Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Rachel Massey
Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Kathleen Nickson
Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Rina Paolucci
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Sara Rowbotham
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Susan Smith
Councillor John Taylor
Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor Donna Williams
Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Sameena Zaheer

Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed
Councillor Daalat Ali
Councillor David Bamford
Councillor Jacqui Beswick
Councillor Malcolm Boriss
Councillor Phil Burke
Councillor Patricia Mary Dale
Councillor Ashley Dearnley
Councillor Neil Emmott
Councillor Janet Emsley
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Kieran Heakin
Councillor Jean Hornby
Councillor Aftab Hussain
Councillor Andy Kelly
Councillor Donna Martin E
Councillor Alan McCarthy
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor Kallum Nolan
Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Faisal Rana
Councillor Linda Robinson
Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Angela Smith
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor Carol Wardle
Councillor June West
Councillor Peter Williams
Councillor Elsie Wraighte
Councillor Mohammed Zaman

Agenda Item 4
COUNCIL
MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 15th July 2020
PRESENT: Councillor Sheerin (the Mayor in the Chair); Councillors Ali
Ahmed, Iftikhar Ahmed, Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Bamford, Besford, Beswick,
Blundell, Boriss, Brett, Burke, Cocks, Dale, Davidson, Dearnley, Dutton,
Susan Emmott, Emsley, Gartside, Hartley, Heakin, Holly, Howard, Hussain,
Joinson, Kelly, Malcolm, Martin, Massey, McCarthy, Meredith, Mir, Nolan,
O’Neill, O’Rourke, Paolucci, Rana, Rashid, Robinson, Rowbotham, Rush,
Angela Smith, Susan Smith, Sullivan, Taylor, Wardle, Wazir, West, Donna
Williams, Peter Williams, Winkler, Wraighte, Zaheer and Zaman.
OFFICERS: S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive), D. Wilcock (Assistant Director –
Legal, Governance and Workforce/Monitoring Officer), M. Garraway,
A. James, N. Suleman and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).
1

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Sultan Ali, Neil
Emmott, Farnell, Hornby and Nickson.

2

MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS
The Mayor reminded the Council of the recent death of former Mayor and
Freeman of the Borough Brian Ashworth who passed away in April 2020.
Members of the Council observed a period of silence in honour of his memory.
The Mayor also reminded the Council that Members, at a previous meeting,
had debated Rochdale Boroughwide Housing’s proposals for the ‘Seven
Sisters’ high rise flats and the Lower Falinge housing schemes in central
Rochdale. In this regard Members of the Council had signed a letter to
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing on those proposals.
Resolved:
That a further report besubmitted to a future meeting of the Council updating
members on Rochdale Boroughwide Housing’s proposals for the ‘Seven
Sisters’ high rise flats and the ‘Lower Falinge’ housing schemes in central
Rochdale.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interests.

4

MINUTES
Resolved:
That the minutes of the meetings of Council held 26th February 2020 and 18th
March 2020 be approved and signed by the Mayor as correct records.

5

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS
There were no submitted questions or petitions.

Page 5

6

NOTICES OF MOTION
a. It was MOVED by Councillor Brett and seconded by Councillor Dearnley that:
“The Council expresses its sincere condolences to the families and friends of
all those residents of the borough who have lost their lives to the Coronavirus
pandemic. The Council agrees to investigate the creation of a permanent
memorial to the victims in each of the borough's Townships. The Council also
pays tribute to all those dedicated health workers, carers, council and
emergency staff who have put their lives on the line protecting others. The
Council also offers its heartfelt thanks to every volunteer across the borough
who has supported the community response to the crisis and assisted our
most vulnerable residents. Council also expresses its appreciation to all
citizens of the borough for their sustained support for the various measures to
prevent the spread of the virus.”
On being put the vote, the motion was carried and it was RESOLVED
accordingly.

b. It was MOVED by Councillor Malcolm and seconded by Councillor Blundell,
that:
“This council recognises the unselfish actions of professional footballer
Marcus Rashford. During the lockdown period this high profile 22 year old
footballer supported a national charity Fareshare and supported them in
fundraising.’
‘He raised £20 million which is a significant sum of money. Not content this
was enough Marcus engaged with the Prime Minister and Parliament to
continue the free school meals voucher scheme throughout the summer
school holidays.
But what is more striking is that this has to happen in the first place. The Tory
government, since taking office in 2010, has seen child poverty levels sky
rocket. In 2020 Britain celebrities shouldn’t have to put the government on the
spot to ensure children are fed and healthy. In Rochdale we have been
pioneers in this area through our Fit, Feed and Read scheme which gives
access to a healthy meal, exercise and books in disadvantaged areas.’
‘Therefore, this council deplores the Tory government’s record on child
poverty and applauds Marcus Rashford’s actions which will support children
through this difficult period. We instruct the Chief Executive Officer to work
with Councillor Malcolm and Councillor Blundell to engage with the Mayor of
Greater Manchester to help roll out the borough’s Fit, Feed and Read Scheme
across Greater Manchester. We also instruct him to write to Marcus Rashford
expressing the council’s gratitude for his actions and to invite him to Rochdale
to promote our scheme.”

Page 6

On being put the vote, the motion was carried and it was RESOLVED
accordingly.

c. It was MOVED by Councillor Rana and seconded by Councillor Susan Smith,
that:
“The Council demands that the Government fulfils its promise to fully
reimburse the Authority its cost in fighting the Coronavirus pandemic, without
which the Council's budget will be £26M overspent and our ability to provide
mandatory education and essential social services in the future will be
seriously impacted. The Council also calls on the Government to establish a
full Public Inquiry into the UK response to the Coronavirus pandemic. Its terms
of reference will inevitably be wide, covering such issues as the high
incidence of deaths in care homes, the supply of essential PPE and the timing
of the lockdown and it’s easing. However, as Rochdale has a large minority
ethnic population, the Inquiry must include the disproportionate impact the
virus has had on the BAME population, the reasons and, more importantly,
the actions required to remove the causes of this inequality.”
On being put the vote, the motion was carried and it was RESOLVED
accordingly.
7

REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION
The Council was informed that the Monitoring Officer undertook regular
reviews of its own Constitution to ensure that the content remained
appropriate and any changes arising from organisational or legislative
requirements were properly captured. Members of the Council had also
identified a number of areas to be addressed as part of the review.
Changes relating to the Council’s Executive (Cabinet) functions were able to
be made by the Leader at any point in the year but changes to non-Executive
functions could only be made following a resolution by the Council.
The current review looked at all elements of the Constitution and particular
sections had been highlighted for a more in-depth review, the outcome of
which would be reported to a future meeting of the Council.
Resolved:
1.
That the Council adopts the following definition for Key Decisions:
An executive decision which, is likely –
a.
To result in the local authority incurring expenditure over £500,000
which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the
local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision
relates.
b.
To be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working
in an area comprising one or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of
the local authority.

Page 7

2.
That Health and Wellbeing Board be disestablished to be replaced by
the Strategic Place Board and the terms of reference be approved, as detailed
at Appendix 2 of the submitted report.
3.
That the revised terms of reference for the Integrated Commissioning
Board be approved, as detailed at Appendix 3 of the submitted report.
4.
That Tameside MBC be added to the Contract Procedure Rules within
Part 4H of the Council’s Constitution and following their joining STAR.
8

WAIVER OF SIX MONTH COUNCILLOR ATTENDANCE RULE (SECTION
85 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972)
The Council was required to consider and authorise any absence of Members
from attendance at meetings in accordance with S85 (1) of the Local
Government Act 1972. Where a Member was unable to attend any meeting of
the authority for a period of six consecutive months following the date of their
last attendance, they automatically ceased to be a Member of the authority,
unless Council has resolved to approve a reason for an extended absence.
Resolved:
That until 14th October 2020, Council agrees to waive the requirements for a
Member to attend a council meeting under Sections 85(1) of the Local
Government Act 1972 (including, in the case of members of the Executive,
non-attendance at meetings of the Executive), on the grounds of the
protection of the health of the residents of the borough or the health of the
individual Members.

9

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR OF COMMISSIONING
The Council was informed that the post of the Director of Strategic
Commissioning will fall vacant in December 2020, following the retirement of
the incumbent. Authority was therefore sought to appoint a replacement.
Resolved:
That the Council grants approval to the recruitment to the post of Director of
Commissioning, within the existing Directors salary range of £100,004 to
£128,686 per annum.

10

CABINET PORTFOLIO'S
The Mayor informed the Council that this item of business was to be
withdrawn from the agenda.

Page 8

COUNCIL
MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 2nd September 2020
PRESENT: Councillor Sheerin (the Mayor in the Chair); Councillors Ali
Ahmed, Iftikhar Ahmed, Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali, Sultan Ali, Bamford,
Besford, Blundell, Boriss, Brett, Burke, Cocks, Dale, Davidson, Dearnley
Dutton, Neil Emmott, Susan Emmott, Emsley, Gartside, Harley, Heakin, Holly,
Howard, Hussain, Joinson, Kelly, Malcolm Massey, Meredith, Mir, Nickson,
Nolan, O’Neill, Paolucci, Rana, Rashid, Robinson, Rowbotham, Rush, Angela
Smith, Susan Smith, Sullivan, Taylor, Wardle, Wazir, Donna Williams, Peter
Williams, Wraighte, Zaheer and Zaman.
OFFICERS: S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive), J. Murphy (Chief Finance
Officer), M. Brooke, C. Wolfenden (Neighbourhoods Directorate),
M. Garraway, A. James, C. Poole, N. Suleman and P. Thompson (Resources
Directorate).
11

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interests.

12

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Beswick, Farnell,
Hornby, McCarthy, Martin, O’Rourke, West and Winkler.

13

PROPOSED PATTERN OF WARDS FOR THE ELECTORAL REVIEW OF
ROCHDALE
The Council was informed that the Local Government Boundary Commission
for England (LGBCE) was undertaking a review of Rochdale Borough
Council’s (the Council) local government electoral arrangements. The
outcome of the review was to be implemented at the 2022 Council elections.
The submitted report, considered by Members, set out the Council’s response
to the invitation from the LGBCE to put forward its preferred future pattern of
wards for the Borough.
In developing the future pattern of wards the Council had recognised the
importance of electoral equality to a fair democratic process and had also
understood and considered that delivering the Council’s priorities was reliant
on ward boundaries that reflected the communities they served, thus bringing
partners and communities with common interests and identities within clearly
recognised geographical boundaries.
Resolved:
that the Council approves the proposed pattern of new wards to be presented
to the Local Government Boundary Commission for England, as set out in the
submitted report and in the supporting documents appended to the report.

Page 9

Agenda Item 7
Report to Council
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

14th October 2020
Leader of the Council and
Cabinet Member for
Finance
Michael Garraway
Public

Non-attendance at meetings
Executive Summary
1.

Council is required to consider and authorise an absence from attendance at
meetings in accordance with S85 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972.
Where a member is unable to attend any meeting of the authority for a period
of 6 consecutive months following the date of their last attendance, they
automatically cease to be a member of the authority, unless Council has
resolved to approve a reason for an extended absence.
Recommendation

2.

That Council resolves, having regard to the circumstances of the absence of
Councillors Farnell and Hornby from Council meetings, to waive the
requirements of Section 85 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972, within the
Municipal Year, or until as such time as the Council is able to hold meetings
in person, suitable equipment is sourced for the Members, or the Local
Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local
Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2020 revoked.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

This is a matter for Full Council to determine.
Key Points for Consideration

4.

S85 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that “if a member of a local
authority fails throughout a period of six consecutive months from the date of
his last attendance to attend any meeting of the authority, he shall, unless the
failure was due to some reason approved by the authority before the expiry of
that period, cease to be a member of that authority”. For the purposes of the
legislation, ‘meetings of the authority’ includes Committee and Sub-Committee
meetings.

Page 10

4.1

At the meeting of Council held on 15 July 2020 approval was given to waive the
requirements for all members to attend meeting until 14 October 2020.

4.2

Without a resolution of the Council under S85 (1) of the 1972 Act, Councillors
Farnell and Hornby would cease to be Councillor’s as of 15th October 2020. No
by-election to fill the casual vacancies can be called before May 2021.

4.3

Council can only consider a reason to waive the requirements of the 1972 Act
prior to the end of the 6 month period. This cannot be approved retrospectively.

4.4

Whilst the Council has successfully implemented video technology to hold
Committee meetings under The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, inherent risks remain
including Members becoming ill, or encountering technological failures with their
broadband supplier which sometimes prevent virtual attendance at the meeting.

4.5

Councillor Farnell has been unable to attend a video meeting due to
incompatibility with his hearing assistance equipment and the computer
technology supplied by the Council. As a result Councillor Farnell has been
unable to meet with the requirements of the Local Authorities and Police and
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, that he ‘be able to
hear and be heard’. The Council has been unable to source suitable equipment
at this time.

4.6

Councillor Hornby’s Arthritis and associated medical problems have proven to
restrict her ability to operate the available Council computing equipment to
successfully join a meeting. The Council has been unable to source suitable
equipment at this time.

4.7

While being unable to access video meetings, both members have
demonstrably continued to undertake their duties as local ward members
dealing with constituents’ complaints and enquiries and liaising with Council
officers on their behalf.
Alternatives considered

4.8

Council could resolve not to approve the reason for absence and not waive the
requirements of the 1972 Act.
Costs and Budget Summary

5.

There are no budget implications associated with this report
Risk and Policy Implications

6.

Should any Councillor lose office, through failure to attend for the six month
period, the disqualification cannot be overcome by the councillor

Page 11

subsequently resuming attendance nor can retrospective approval of the
Council be sought for an extension in time.
Consultation
7.

No consultation has been undertaken.
Background Papers

8.

Place of Inspection

There are no background papers

For Further Information Contact:

None applicable

Michael Garraway, 01706 924716,
Michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 12

Agenda Item 8
Report to Council
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

14th October 2020
Cabinet Member for
Resources
Peter Thompson
Public

Overview and Scrutiny - Annual Report 2019/2020
Executive Summary
1.1

To comply with best professional practice, the Council’s Overview and
Scrutiny Committees are advised to complete an Annual Report to Council
on the work undertaken by the Council’s three Overview and Scrutiny
Committees during the preceding year.

1.2

Attached at the Appendix is the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for
2019/20.
Recommendation

2.

That the Overview and Scrutiny - Annual Report 2019/2020 be endorsed.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

To comply with best practice, as identified within LGA guidance, the report
highlights the work carried out by overview and scrutiny committees in the
Rochdale Borough in 2019/2020 and in doing so demonstrates accountability
for actions undertaken.
Key Points for Consideration

4.1 The submitted report summarises the activities of the Council’s three Scrutiny
s report
Committees and reports on some of the highlights and achievements of the
last year. Throughout the year the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny
Committees tackle wide and varied work programmes which cut across all
Council Directorates. The Committees engage with appropriate Cabinet
Members prior to decisions being taken and also held them to account on
service areas and policy.
Alternatives Considered
4.2 No other options were considered as the production of an Annual Report aligns
with best practice guidance.

Page 13

Costs and Budget Summary
5.

Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications
6.

The key risk of not producing an Annual Report is that the Overview and
Scrutiny Committees do not demonstrate clear accountability.
Consultation

7.

Not applicable.

Background Papers
8.

Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact:

Peter Thompson
E: Peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk
T: 01706 924715

Page 14

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY IN ROCHDALE – 2019/2020
INTRODUCTION
This report summarises the activities of the Council’s three Scrutiny Committees and
reports on some of the highlights and achievements of the last year.
Throughout the year the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees tackle wide and
varied work programmes which cut across all Council Directorates. The Committees
engage with appropriate Cabinet Members prior to decisions being taken and also
held them to account on service areas and policy.
The primary focus for the Health Scrutiny Committee this year has been the
transformation of the health and social care landscape and urgent care redesign.
The Council has this year taken a leading role in administering one of the two Joint
Health Scrutiny Committees, reviewing the work of Pennine Care NHS Foundation
Trust. Good working relationships have continued with Members and Officers in both
the NHS and in the partner Local Authorities of Stockport, Oldham, Bury and
Tameside.
During the spring of this year the Council established a Joint Overview and Scrutiny
Panel with the purpose of maintaining a scrutiny function, to hold the actions of the
Leader and other Cabinet Members to account during the early stages and peak
periods of the Covid-19 pandemic. The membership of the Panel was drawn from the
Council’s three Overview and Scrutiny Committees and it met on a number of
occasions during the spring and summer months of 2020.
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Overview and Scrutiny Committees are an important part of the way that decisions are
made. Whilst the Committees themselves have no executive powers, the scrutiny
process does allow Members to explore issues in depth and help to influence
decisions through recommendations to the Cabinet and/or Full Council.
The statutory basis for the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny arrangements are:The Local Government Act 2000 requires that Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s)
have the power to
 review or scrutinise decisions or actions in respect of any functions that are
the responsibility of the executive;
 make reports to the local authority or the executive in respect of functions that
that are the responsibility of the executive;
 review or scrutinise decisions or actions in respect of functions that are not
the responsibility of the executive;
 make recommendations to the local authority in respect of functions that that
are not the responsibility of the executive;
 to make recommendations to the local authority or the executive in respect of
matters which affect the local authority’s area or inhabitants.

Page 15

Rochdale Council has followed statutory guidance which focussed on
overview and scrutiny in the context of executive arrangements, and this has
been followed by using policy consultation, budget and service planning
consultation, call-in, and financial and operational performance review as the
principal mechanisms for undertaking this function.
The Health and Social Care Acts 2001 and 2012 - The 2001 Act provided for an
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to review and scrutinise local health services and
review any matters relating to the planning, provision and operation of local health
services, and required NHS bodies to consult the Committee on substantial
developments or variations to services. The 2012 Act gave flexibility to deliver the
health scrutiny function; Rochdale Council delegated much of the function to the
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Additional 2012 powers included the
receipt of referrals from Healthwatch and extension of the health scrutiny function to
cover providers of health services commissioned by NHS England and the CCG,
including GP practices, pharmacies, opticians and private or voluntary bodies.
Police and Justice Act 2006 - required local authorities to have a ‘crime and
disorder’ Overview and Scrutiny Committee to review and scrutinise decisions or
actions in relation to the discharge of crime and disorder functions, and to make
reports or recommendations to the local authority or the executive with respect to
the discharge of those functions. This function is linked to the local crime and
disorder reduction partnership. In Rochdale this is the Rochdale Safer Communities
Partnership, which reports to the Communities, Regeneration and Environment
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
In practice, the role of scrutiny committees can be broken down into two broad
functions:a. Holding the Cabinet (and other executive decision making bodies – such as
Township Committees and the Integrated Commissioning Board) to account - this
involves scrutinising decisions before they are implemented by way of ‘Call-in’ to
the relevant Scrutiny Committee for debate. The effect of a ‘Call-in’ is to suspend
the decision until the Scrutiny Committee has had the opportunity to consider the
implications of the decision and, where appropriate, to offer comments back to
the original decision maker.
b. Policy Development - this involves Scrutiny Committees undertaking reviews of
functions within their individual remits leading to recommendations to the
Cabinet, and to assist in the development of future policies and strategies.
Overview and Scrutiny Committee are responsible, wherever necessary, for setting
up and monitoring reviews carried out by study groups. These groups are tasked
with reviewing particular policy areas with a view to making recommendations that
will ultimately result in service improvements.
During 2019/2020 the Council’s Scrutiny Committees have looked at a wide range of
topics and issues. Various methods have been used to examine and investigate
issues which have resulted in positive outcomes in terms of policy development and
holding decision makers to account.

Page 16

In Rochdale the following Committees carry out the Overview and Scrutiny function:
a. Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
b. Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
c. Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the Executive,
Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers.
The specific functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:
a.
b.

c.
d.

e.
f.
g.
h.

i.

j.

Develop a work programme detailing its objectives.
Being the responsible Committee for the scrutiny of Townships generally;
corporate service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or
key contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; corporate
financial monitoring and the annual budget development consultation, and for
overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and Directors.
To respond to consultation by the Cabinet on relevant policy development and
on annual budget proposals.
To scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services in accordance with
the Council’s Performance Management Framework and against approved
Directorate Plans, where appropriate.
To scrutinise in-year budget performance.
To scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by
external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
To review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the Council.
To receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives on
outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the Council, where
appropriate.
To commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to Council
Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where appropriate, to
make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from such studies and reviews.
To consider relevant Annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy.

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members,
representative of the political groupings of the Council. In 2019/2020 these
members were as follows:
Councillor Michael Holly – Chair
Councillor Shaun O’Neill - Vice Chair
Councillor David Bamford

Page 17

Councillor Malcolm Boriss
Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor Kallum Nolan
Councillor Liam O’Rourke
Councillor Faisal Rana
Councillor Linda Robinson
Councillor Elsie Wraighte

Some of the key issues covered by the Committee in 2019/2020 included:









Quarterly Directorate Plan Updates (Resources and the appropriate services
within the Neighbourhoods Directorate)
Directorate Plans 2019/2020 (for the Resources and Neighbourhoods
Directorates)
Regular revenue and corporate capital finance updates
Budgetary reports preparing for the following year’s budget and beyond
including scrutiny of the authority’s capital programme proposals and of its
Medium Term Financial Strategy and Capital Programme.
Performance monitoring reports in respect of Corporate Complaints (including
the Local Government Ombudsman’s Annual Report); Health Related
Absences; performance data around Agilisys and the management of the
corporate call centre.
Presentations on the role of the customer transformation programme, welfare
reform, the Council’s Digital Strategy and its Communications Strategy.
Scrutiny of Greater Manchester Combined Authority proposals: Integrated
Health and Social Care Pooled Fund 2020/2021, Manchester Airport Group –
Strategic Investment Policy and the Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Levy
Allocation

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
The purpose of the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and
Scrutiny Committee is:
a. To be responsible for scrutiny of partnerships or key contractors (eg.
Rochdale Development Agency, Rochdale Boroughwide Housing and
Link4Life); Economy and Regeneration; Communities; Local Development
Framework; Housing; Environment; Highways and Licensing, and for
overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and Directors.
b. To respond to consultation(s) by Cabinet on relevant policy development
proposals.
c. To scrutinise the in-year performance of relevant Council Services,
partnership bodies and other appropriate bodies, in accordance with the
Council’s Quarterly Performance Management Framework and against
approved Service Plans, where appropriate.

Page 18

d. To scrutinise the discharge by the Responsible Authorities within Rochdale
Safer Communities Partnership of their crime and disorder functions as set
out in the Police and Justice Act 2006.
e. To instigate appropriate action in response to adverse service performance.
f. To scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by
external agencies, where appropriate.
g. To review and scrutinise executive decisions where appropriate to this
Committee in accordance with the Council’s Constitution that have been
called-in by Members of the Council.
h. To receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives on
outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the Council, where
appropriate.
i. To commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to relevant
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from such
studies and reviews.
j. To consider Directorate Plans in line with Council Policy
The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny
Committee is made up of 10 Members representative of the three political groupings
of the Council. Throughout 2019/2020 these members were as follows:
Councillor Daniel Meredith – Chair
Councillor Angela Smith - Vice Chair
Councillor Tom Besford
Councillor Jacqueline Beswick
Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor Andy Kelly
Councillor June West
Councillor Peter Williams
Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Some of the key issues covered by the Committee in 2019/2020 included:
 Directorate Plans (Neighbourhoods and Economy Directorates – including the
Rochdale Development Agency)
 Directorate Plans Quarterly Updates (Neighbourhoods and Economy
Directorates)
 Discretionary Crisis Fund (updates on the progress of the Fund)
 Rochdale Boroughwide Housing – performance monitoring information and a
question and answer session with the organisation’s Chief Executive
 Housing allocations – policy and strategy
 Rochdale Safer Community Partnership – including ‘town centre enforcement’
via the use of Public Space Protection Orders
 Playing Pitch Strategy proposals
 Waste Collection and Enforcement Policy Updates
 Winter gritting and highway maintenance proposals
 Highways (Bridges and Structures) Inspection Policies
 Highways Maintenance – contract renewal proposals

Page 19





Feel Good Festival a presentation on the planning, preparation an delivery of
events at the Borough’s now annual Festival
Dippy the Dinosaur – a presentation around the key issues that the Borough
will face during the period that Dippy is to be hosted in Number One Riverside
The growing impact of climate change – which will become a primary feature
of the Committee’s work programme moving forward
Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The purpose of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee is:To be the responsible Committee for the Council’s health scrutiny function (with the
exception of any referrals to the Secretary of State arising from
statutory consultations being referred to Council for determination); for scrutiny of
Health and Wellbeing (including scrutiny of the Health and Wellbeing Board,
particularly with reference to joint commissioning proposals arising between the
Council and the CCG with regard to health and social care arrangements); and for
scrutiny of partnerships or key contractors: (eg Inspired Spaces), Child and Adult
Social Care Services; Early Help and Schools Services; the Borough’s two
Safeguarding Boards and for the overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and
Directors.
a. To respond to consultation by Cabinet and the Health and Wellbeing Board on
relevant policy development proposals.
b. To scrutinise the in-year performance of relevant Council Services,
partnership bodies and other appropriate bodies, in accordance with the
Council’s Performance Management Framework and against approved
Service Plans, where appropriate.
c. To instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service
performance.
d. To scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by
external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
e. To review and scrutinise executive decisions where appropriate to this
Committee in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, which have been
called-in by Members of the Council.
f. To receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives on
outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the Council, where
appropriate.
g. To scrutinise Safeguarding arrangements, including consideration of
Safeguarding Boards’ Annual Reports
h. To commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to relevant
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from such
studies and reviews.
i. To consider Directorate Plans in line with Council Policy.
j. To be the Council body identified to receive issues and reports from Health
Watch
k. To consider, as relevant, reports from the Care Quality Commission as part of
the wider health scrutiny considerations.
l. To receive minutes of the joint health scrutiny bodies.

Page 20

The Health Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 10
Members representative of the three political groupings of the Council, plus a coopted Member, Mr John McGrath, who was appointed by the Council in October
2019 and a representative of the HealthWatch organisation.

Throughout 2019/2020 the elected Members were as follows:
Councillor Ray Dutton – Chair
Councillor Pat Sullivan – Vice Chair
Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor Patricia Dale
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Rachel Massey
Councillor Alan McCarthy
Councillor Susan Smith
Some of the key issues covered by the Committee in 2019/2020 included:
 Directorate Plans and Directorate Plan Updates for Children’s Services, Adult
Care Services and Public Health services
 Adult Care quarterly Market Oversight Reports
 Update reports on the development of Integrated Commissioning in Rochdale
 Link4Life Performance Review reports
 Presentations on Special Education Needs provision in Rochdale
 Developments regarding the building of two new schools in the Borough
 An update on the Rochdale Borough Locality Plan
 Updates from healthcare providers: Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust,
Pennine Acute Hospitals NHS Trust and Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale
NHS CCG (Northern Care Alliance)
 Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults and Children’s Safeguarding
Board’s Annual Reports
 Social Care Complaints - quarterly reports
 Adoption Service – Annual Report
 SUNRISE Team’s annual report

Page 21

Agenda Item 9
Report to Council
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

14th October 2020
Cabinet Member for
Resources
Alison James
Public

Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2019/20
Executive Summary
1.1

To comply with best professional practice, the Audit and Governance
Committee is advised to complete an Annual Report to Council on the work
undertaken by the Audit and Governance Committee during the year.

1.2

Attached at Appendix A is the Annual Report for 2019/20 prepared by the
Chair in consultation with the Head of Internal Audit.
Recommendation

2.

That the Annual Report for 2019/20 by the Audit and Governance Committee
be endorsed.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

To comply with best practice identified within the CIPFA publication: Audit
Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 2018 and in
order to demonstrate accountability.
Key Points for Consideration

4.1

Given its role in the governance structure and in promoting the principles of
good governance, the Audit and Governance Committee should be clear how
it supports one of the key principles: accountability. It is also important that
the Audit and Governance Committee is, in turn, held to account on the extent
to which it has fulfilled its purpose. Aside from the Audit and Governance
Committee’s requirement to support the Authority’s accountability to the public
and its stakeholders, and support accountability within the Authority, it is also
important that the Committee itself is held to account.
The Annual Report 2019/20 presented in Appendix 1 is the means by which
the Audit and Governance Committee demonstrates its accountability to
Council, as the overall governing body of the Authority.

Page 22

4.2
Alternatives Considered
No other options were considered as the production of an Annual Report
aligns with best practice guidance.
Costs and Budget Summary
5.

Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications
6.

The key risk of not producing an Annual Report is that the Audit and
Governance Committee does not demonstrate clear accountability and does
not therefore comply with best professional practice.
Consultation

7.

Not applicable.

Background Papers
8.

Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact:

Alison James
alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 23

Audit and Governance Committee
Annual Report 2019/20
FOREWORD
By the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee 2019/20
Councillor Peter Malcolm
I am pleased to present the Audit and Governance Committee’s Annual Report. It
records our progress in providing the degree of independence, questioning, and
thoroughness required across a wide range of control and corporate governance
matters
During the year, the Committee met on four occasions and received reports in
connection with the full range of issues that fall within our remit.
This report indicates the breadth of the Audit and Governance Committee’s work in
ensuring that every aspect of the Council’s work should be compliant with standards
and transparent to its stakeholders. Increasingly, the Committee is receiving reports on
items such as new guidance from CIPFA which ensure that we are being kept up to
date on current developments in wider governance standards and expectations as well
as dealing with relevant Council business. I believe that this Annual Report
demonstrates our value to the Council and the public in ensuring that improvements to
the governance of the Authority are being delivered.
As Chair, I believe that the Audit and Governance Committee has provided a valuable
contribution to the development of standards and protocols across a wide range of
governance areas during what has been a challenging year and has proved its worth
in helping to ensure that these are implemented across the Council in an effective and
compliant way.
Looking forward, the Council is facing a period of unprecedented change in order to
continue to achieve the required budget savings and comply with new statutory
requirements. In addition the recovery process from the response to the Covid-19
pandemic presents the Council with significant challenges going forward and the need
to maintain effective controls and standards in our public services is more important
than ever. I believe that a strong Audit and Governance Committee is essential to
ensure that the Council achieves its objectives effectively in these areas. To support
this, it is important that the Audit and Governance Committee continues to operate in a
proactive manner regarding risks to the organisation and, in conjunction with officers,
continue to identify key risks and ensure that appropriate actions are taken in direct
response to these in a timely manner.
On a personal level I would like the Committee to continue its work on strengthening
the Council’s democratic and governance procedures, especially when we consider
the massive shift taking place in local government, and a continual challenge of the
wider Constitution and governance structures within the Council should help to support
this aim.
Finally, I would like to acknowledge the excellent work of the members of the Audit
and Governance Committee and the supporting officers during the past year.

Page 24

1. BACKGROUND
1.1 What drives governance policy?
The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. In discharging this
overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for ensuring that there is a sound
system of control which facilitates the effective exercise of the Council’s functions and
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.
Effective corporate governance is a fundamental feature of any successful public
sector organisation. Following several high profile failures in the private sector, the
desire to strengthen governance arrangements spread from the private sector to the
public sector and resulted in the joint Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA)/Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE)
document Delivering Good Governance in Local Government - a Framework. The
Framework, originally launched in 2007, has since been updated in 2016 as a result of
which governance standards became focused on seven core principles.
A sound corporate governance framework involves accountability to service users,
stakeholders and the wider community, within which authorities take decisions, and
lead and control their functions, to achieve their objectives. It thereby provides an
opportunity to demonstrate the positive elements of an authority's business and to
promote public confidence.
Rochdale Borough Council has a local Code of Corporate Governance based on the
following seven core principles which underpin and define the meaning of good
governance:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values,
and respecting the rule of law;
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental
benefits;
Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the
intended outcomes;
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and
the individuals within it;
Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong
public financial management; and
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver
effective accountability.

1.2 Why do we need an Audit and Governance Committee?
While there is no statutory obligation to have such an arrangement, audit committees
are widely recognised as a core component of effective governance and therefore
reflect good practice. Rochdale’s Audit and Governance Committee is properly
constituted and, as such, is given sufficient authority and resources by the Council. In
effect, the Committee has the right to obtain all the information it considers necessary
and to consult directly with senior managers. In line with best practice from both the
public and private sectors, the Audit and Governance Committee can report its
observations and concerns directly to the Council.

Page 25

A local authority has a duty to ensure that it is fulfilling its responsibility for adequate
and effective internal control, risk management, and governance, as well as the
economy, efficiency and effectiveness of its activities. The Audit and Governance
Committee has a key role in overseeing and assessing the internal control, risk
management, and corporate governance arrangements and advising the Council on
the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
Good corporate governance requires independent, effective assurance about the
adequacy of financial management and of management arrangements for achieving
the organisation's objectives. These responsibilities require an independent and
challenging approach. Through these mechanisms, Committee Members are able to
use their skills and experiences to influence the Council’s governance, internal control
processes, and risk management arrangements.
An effective committee can bring many benefits to the Council including:
• increasing public confidence in the objectivity and fairness of financial and other
reporting;
• providing additional assurance through a process of independent and objective
scrutiny;
• raising awareness of the need for internal control and the implementation of audit
recommendations; and
• reinforcing the importance and independence of internal audit.
1.3 What does an Audit and Governance Committee do?
The Audit and Governance Committee’s main responsibilities are to oversee the
Council’s corporate governance arrangements, the work of Internal Audit, and the
Council’s response to external audit and other external inspections. Working in
partnership with the Monitoring Officer and the Council’s Independent Member and
Independent Person, the Committee also plays a key role in the oversight of complaint
arrangements under the Code of Conduct for Members of the Council.
This purpose is reflected in the Committee’s terms of reference which are reviewed
and adopted each year by Full Council (attached at Appendix 1). The Committee
advises the Council on all matters relating to its corporate governance. In doing so, the
Committee receives scheduled reports on the following matters:
• reviewing the operation and compliance with the Council’s Code of Corporate
Governance and making recommendations on its content;
• keeping the Council's Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy under review and making
recommendations to the Council on the content and operation of that Policy;
• reviewing and approving the Annual Governance Statement and ensuring that;




the statements made properly reflect the risk environment;
there is reliable evidence to support the disclosures made; and,
that any necessary improvement actions are being taken;

• approving the Annual Statement of Accounts;
• receiving and reviewing the external auditor’s opinion on the Annual Statement of
Accounts, and monitoring management’s responses to the issues raised by external
audit;
• overseeing Internal Audit’s operations, in particular:

Page 26





receiving any internal audit strategies, Charter, audit plans, and considering
progress against such plans as necessary through quarterly reports to Committee;
receiving Annual Reports on Internal Audit and counter-fraud activities; and
reviewing the progress and adequacy of management’s response to Internal
Audit’s recommendations, and matters arising from Internal Audit reports;

• receiving the external auditor’s Annual Audit Letter, Audit Plans, and any other
reports and significant matters deemed necessary by the external auditor;
• reviewing the progress and adequacy of management’s response to external audit
recommendations;
• receiving reports on the Risk Management Strategy and the monitoring and review
of risk management, in order to consider the effectiveness of arrangements;
• having oversight of the Council’s arrangements for dealing with complaints about
Members and any other issues associated with the Code of Conduct for Members;
and
• in cases where an investigation has upheld allegations that Members have breached
the Code of Conduct, the Committee holds public hearings to make the final decision
and determine the sanction in appropriate cases.
1.4 How do Officers Support the Committee?
The Audit and Governance Committee is supported by:
• The Chief Finance Officer as Section 151 Officer who is responsible under the law for
ensuring the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs and who has overall
responsibility for the arrangements in this area;
• The Monitoring Officer who is required by law to ensure that the Council acts within
its legal powers at all times, dealing with the day to day handling of ethical standards
complaints and reporting to the Council in cases where the Local Government & Social
Care Ombudsman makes a reportable finding of maladministration;
• The Head of Internal Audit who has a key role to play in supporting the Committee
because of the importance of the Internal Audit service to governance; and
• Any other officer of the Council as required.
2 FINANCIAL YEAR 2019/20
This Annual Report for 2019/20 produced by the Audit and Governance Committee
has been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA best practice publication ‘A Toolkit
for Local Authority Audit Committees’. The report demonstrates how the Audit and
Governance Committee has fulfilled its terms of reference and how it is fully committed
to helping to improve the Council’s governance and control environments during what
should prove to be another very challenging year ahead.
The Committee’s activities during 2019/20 were designed to make a positive
contribution to the continual improvement of governance arrangements across the
Council, as well as performing the statutory roles as identified in the Constitution.

Page 27

3 SOME KEY INFORMATION
3.1 Audit and Governance Committee Membership
The Audit and Governance Committee has 9 core Members, together with one
independent member and one independent person to support standards related issues
in accordance with the Localism Act 2011. Throughout 2019/20 these members were
as follows:
Councillor Peter Malcolm – Chair
Councillor Aasim Rashid – Vice-Chair
Councillor Ali Ahmed
Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Aftab Hussain
Councillor Donna Martin
Councillor Kathleen Nickson
Councillor Donna Williams
Jaime Sanderson (independent member)
Craig Ainsworth (independent person)
Further to approval by Council on 27 February 2019, the recruitment of an
independent member and independent person was completed during the course of
2019.
3.2 Key Features of the Audit Committee and its Operation
The Committee meets CIPFA’s definition of best practice as illustrated below:
Best Practice Expectation

Met Comment

Independence Independent
from the
executive and
scrutiny
Number of
3 to 5 members
Members

√

The Committee reports to the Council

√

Number of
meetings

Aligned to
business needs

√

Co-option

To be
considered
relative to skills

√

Terms of
Reference

Accord with
suggested
best practice

√

The Committee has 9 members, plus 1
independent member and 1 independent
person, with the option of 1 further
independent member and person.
The frequency of meetings, 4 or 5 times a
year, complies with best practice and ensures
all core business is completed in a timely
manner. Other meetings may be scheduled if
deemed appropriate to support business
needs.
Training is currently provided to increase
Members’ skills; this is assessed on an
ongoing basis to ensure the Committee
continues to be effective and to determine
future training requirements. Membership now
includes 1 independent member with the
option to add a further independent member.
The Committee has adopted the CIPFA
recommended model Terms Of Reference and
these are reviewed annually to ensure that
they remain fit for purpose.

Page 28

Best Practice Expectation

Met Comment

Skills and
training

√

Members have
sufficient skills
for the job

General and specific training is provided to
increase Members’ skills, with an induction for
new Members and ongoing assessment of any
specific needs to inform future training plans.

3.3 Meetings
In line with best practice, the Audit and Governance Committee met 4 times during the
year in July, September 2019, January and March 2020.
4

CORE ACTIVITY 2019/20

4.1 Terms of Reference
The Audit and Governance Committee’s Terms of Reference are comprehensive, cover all
main areas and are attached at Appendix 1 to this Annual Report. The Committee’s work
and outcomes in each of its areas of responsibility are summarised in the following
subsections.
4.2 Internal Audit
The Audit and Governance Committee:
• Approved Internal Audit’s Annual Audit Plan;
• Considered regular reports produced by the Head of Internal Audit highlighting internal
audit work completed, Internal Audit performance against key indicators and any
significant issues arising during the period;
• Considered the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Report and assurance opinion on the
Council’s control environment;
• Ensured internal and external audit plans were complementary and provided optimum
use of the total audit resource;
• Received updates and an Annual Report on Internal Audit’s counter fraud remit and
activities undertaken; and
• Monitored the progress made in the implementation of high and medium priority audit
recommendations through regular reports received from Internal Audit, also inviting
senior management within certain services to attend and present updates on progress
being made on significant areas.
We continue to provide support to the Internal Audit service to ensure management is
responsive to recommendations made and agreed.
4.3 External Audit
The Audit and Governance Committee:
• Considered the external auditor’s Audit Plan and audit fee;
• Considered progress against the plan presented by the external auditor;
• Received and considered all external audit and inspection reports issued in the year
and considered management’s response to them, ensuring robust and thorough
responses;
• Considered the Value for Money conclusions and ensured appropriate actions were
being taken to address any issues and challenges arising;
• Considered the external auditor’s Annual Audit Letter; and

Page 29

• Considered reports on the risk and challenges being faced by Rochdale both now and
into the future to ensure that an appropriate response and action was being taken by
the Council.
We continue to provide support to external audit to ensure management is responsive to
recommendations made and agreed.
4.4 Risk Management
The Audit and Governance Committee:
• Received details of the Risk Management system, how it works and arrangements in
place for mitigating risks;
• Considered regular reports from the Risk Manager on developments within both
Service based and Corporate Risk Registers to ensure the Members are aware of any
emerging risks across the Council and the extent to which the Risk Management
Strategy is being embedded; and
• Considered and challenged the Corporate Risk Register to support monitoring
undertaken by the Leadership Team.
We continue to provide support to promote effective Risk Management policies and
procedures across the Council and ensure best practice is achieved.
4.5 Internal Control and Governance
The Audit and Governance Committee:
• Agreed the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and action plans to improve
identified weaknesses; and
• Considered the Council’s response to the Government’s Fighting Fraud Locally
initiative to ensure that sound governance and counter-fraud arrangements are in
place and are working as intended.
The Annual Governance Statement is a key document which summarises the Council’s
governance arrangements and the effectiveness of the arrangements during the year.
4.6 Accounts
The Audit and Governance Committee:
• Received training and guidance on the preparation of the Annual Statement of
Accounts and the key issues which should be considered prior to approval;
• Received and considered the external auditor’s report on the accounts, and ensured
that the Council responded appropriately to the auditor’s comments and
recommendations; and
• Reviewed and approved the Annual Statement of Accounts, considering whether
appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether there are any
concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit that need to be
brought to the attention of the Council.
4.7 Specific Issues
The Audit and Governance Committee also considered reports and presentations on the
following specific issues during the period:
 Developments made in procurement strategies and procedures relating to embedding
social value into relevant processes through a presentation by the Director of STAR
procurement hub; and

Page 30

 Consideration of the Council Size report for the Electoral Review of RBC for the
Committee to recommend that Full Council approves the Council Size Submission to
the Local Government Boundary Commission for England.
5. PLANS FOR 2020/21
During 2019/20 the Audit and Governance Committee has continued to champion good
governance across the Council, and going forward will look to develop further and help to
support and address many of the issues which may arise in such a challenging and
difficult environment. Our priorities for 2020/21 are to continue to meet our duties as
specified in the Constitution by developing and building on our current status as well as
responding to and implementing any requirements arising out of the Public Sector Internal
Auditing Standards and the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2015. For 2020/21 we will:
• Continue to develop the effectiveness of the Audit and Governance Committee to
review all governance issues identified, including the support and challenge of new
governance arrangements associated with the development of integrated health and
care commissioning;
• Continue to ensure that effective controls and standards in our public services are
maintained throughout the recovery process from the response to the Covid-19
pandemic;
• Develop the proactive nature of the Committee to facilitate actions by officers to
ensure that risks are identified earlier in the process and remedial actions taken in a
more timely fashion in response;
• Continue to drive up standards to ensure the Council is able to meet the demanding
requirements of the external inspection and assessment regime;
• Continue to review all governance arrangements to ensure the Council adopts the very
latest best practice;
• Continue to support the work of Internal and External Audit and ensure appropriate
responses are given to their recommendations;
• Ensure we maintain and further improve our standards in relation to the production of
accounts;
• Continue to support the Council to manage the risk of fraud and corruption;
• Oversee the development of audit plans to evaluate and test controls in operation over
complex and developing areas such as integrated health and social care; and
• Equip existing and any new Members to fulfil our responsibilities by providing more
detailed and effective training on all key areas of responsibility including financial
arrangements, risk management, governance and audit.

Councillor Peter Malcolm (Chair)
Rochdale Borough Council Audit and Governance Committee
July 2020

Page 31

Appendix 1

Audit and Governance Committee Terms of Reference
According to The Council’s Constitution the audit committee is responsible for the following
functions which have been split into the following 3 areas:
1. Council functions
1. Duty to approve the Authority’s Statement of Accounts, income and expenditure and
balance sheet, or record of payments and receipts (as the case may be);
2. Powers to make payments or provide benefits in cases of maladministration etc;
3. Duty to divide constituency into polling districts; and
4. Power to divide electoral divisions into polling districts at local government elections.
2. Functions related to the Code of Conduct for Councillors and Voting Co-opted
Members
1. Establish a Sub-Committee to consider an exceptional referral of a complaint from the
Monitoring Officer;
2. To appoint to Hearings Panels (Sub-Committees) if not otherwise appointed by the
Monitoring Officer;
3. Granting dispensations to Councillors, Independent Members and Co-opted Members who
would otherwise be unable to participate in and/or vote on a matter due to a prejudicial
interest on the grounds that:
i. The grant of the dispensation would be in the interest of the inhabitants of the Authority’s
area; or
ii. It is otherwise appropriate to grant the dispensation; and
4. Monitoring of the Code of Conduct for Councillors and Voting Co-opted Members, of the
Protocol for Relationships between Members and Council Employees, the Code of Conduct
for Members considering Planning Matters and the Code of Conduct for Members dealing with
Licensing Matters (Licensing Act 2003, Gambling Act 2005, Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013).
3. Functions of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s
recommended ‘audit committee’
1. To approve the Annual Governance Statement and monitor achievement;
2. To approve the Internal Audit Charter;
3. To review and approve the Internal Audit Annual Plan and the Risk Management Strategy,
considering the effectiveness of the proposed audit programme in providing adequate
assurance over arrangements for governance, risk management and internal control;
4. To consider Internal Audit reports arising from the Internal Audit Annual Plan, ensuring that
adequate management responses are made in respect of the findings of audit investigations,
and particularly monitoring the outcomes of responses to individual significant adverse reports
on financial management and internal control;
5. To consider the Internal Audit Annual Report and to ensure the implementation of
appropriate action;
6. To review the adequacy of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy, and related policies and
procedures, to ensure their application and effectiveness;
7. To consider the External Audit Plan, the external auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports
and the annual report to those charged with governance on issues arising from the audit of
the Annual Statement of Accounts; and
8. To review the Council’s Risk Registers (Council Constitution, Part 3 responsibility for
functions).

Page 32

Agenda Item 10
Report to Council
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

14th October 2020
Councillor Daalat Ali
(Cabinet Member for
Resources)
Michael Garraway
Public

Decisions taken under Special Urgency Provisions
Executive Summary
1.

The report details executive decisions taken under special urgency provision,
by the Chief Executive between February and October 2020.

1.1

The Chief Executive has taken special urgent decisions, in accordance with
the Council’s Constitution, in consultation with Portfolio Holders and the
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chair. Decisions taken during this
period were as a result of the limitations for Cabinet and other bodies to meet
due to the Covid-19 pandemic.
Recommendation

2

The decisions taken by the Chief Executive under special urgency
provisions be noted.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, decisions taken as a matter of
special urgency shall be reported to a meeting of the Council.
Key Points for Consideration

4.

Through the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England
and Wales) Regulations 2020, the Government has temporarily removed the
legal requirement for local authorities to hold public meetings in person. Prior
to the enactment of the Regulations Council Committees were unable to meet
following the Prime Minister’s announcement on 16 March 2020 that we are
to avoid all non-essential contact and work from home where possible.

4.1

As a result the Council had taken steps to cancel the planned meetings of
Cabinet and the Integrated Commissioning Board scheduled for 31 March
2020.

Page 33

4.2

A number of key and executive decisions were required either as planned
business or as a result of national and local measures to be taken to respond
to the pandemic.

4.3

The Council utilised the powers within the Constitution to enable the Chief
Executive to take special urgency decisions to enable the continued
functioning of services to support the community. A total of 23 decisions were
taken and are detailed in appendix 1.

4.4

Alternatives Considered
There are no alternatives to consider as the reporting of special urgency
decisions to Council is a Constitutional requirement.
Costs and Budget Summary

5.

There are no direct financial implications to this report. Information relating to
the budget was reported to each decision maker at the time of determination.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.

Not adhering to requirements of the Council’s Constitution may leave the
Council open to legal challenge.
Consultation

7.

There is no consultation required for this report.
Background Papers

8.

Place of Inspection

There are no background papers

For Further Information Contact:

There are no background papers
Michael Garraway, 01706 924718,
michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 34

Special Urgency Decisions required following Covid-19 closure

Decision
maker

Original
Designation

Chief
Exec

Title

Page 35

Decision

Portfolio
Holder

Lead
Officer

O&S
Chair

Integrated
Adult Social Care
Commissioning Commissioning
Board
Plan 2019/20 *

Approve the 12 month
extension of the Adult
Care contracts totalling
£31,231,719 including
delegations to DASS to
sign off contracts

Cllr Iftikhar
Ahmed

Tracey
Harrison

Cllr Dutton

Chief
Exec

Integrated
Public Health
Commissioning Commissioning
Board
Intentions
2020/21

Approve the 12 month
Cllr Iftikhar
extension to contracts of
Ahmed
the DASS and/or Director
of Public Health to sign off
contracts

Tracey
Harrison

Cllr Dutton

Chief
Exec

Integrated
Adult Care
Commissioning Operations –
Board
Service Delivery
Proposal For Day
Care Fees

Implementation of three
Cllr Iftikhar
banded session rates (A
Ahmed
£20, B £35, C £59) to
standardise the allocation
of funding for Day Care
services across Adult Care
Services from June 2020.

Tracey
Harrison

Cllr Dutton

DASS
from Chief
Exec

New

Approval of £1.1m funding
to service providers

Tracey
Harrison /
Gareth
Davies

Cllr Dutton

Social Care Cash
Injection for
Covid 19 related
costs

Cllr Iftikhar
Ahmed

Page 36

Chief
Exec

New

Hardship
Funding

Implement a tax credit of
up to £150.00 for every
working age household,
that is currently in receipt
of Local Council Tax
Support

Cllr Brett

Keith
Cllr Holly
Mackenzie

Chief
Exec

New

Business Grants

Pay eligible businesses in
the Borough grants of
either £10,000 or £25,000,
which will be reimbursed
by the Government.

Cllr Brett

Keith
Cllr Holly
Mackenzie

Chief
Exec

New

Discretionary
Rate Relief

Extend Retail Rate Relief
from 50% to 100% and
widening its scope to
include other businesses
including some private
nurseries.

Cllr Brett

Keith
Cllr Holly
Mackenzie

Chief
Exec

Cabinet (new)

L4L contract
payments for
20/21

Payments totalling
Cllr Brett
£648,000, representing the
Council’s grant
contribution to Link4Life
during the first four months
of 2020/21

Rob
Kilvington

Cllr
Meredith

Chief
Finance
Officer

New

Supplier payment
terms

Release of early payment
funds to local businesses

Mark
Barrett

Cllr Holly

Cllr Brett

Page 37

Chief
Exec

Cabinet

Draft Joint
Equality,
Diversity and
Inclusion
Strategy

To approve the Joint
Strategy

Cllr Emsley

Mark
Widdup

Chief
Exec

Cabinet

Review of
Recreational
Open Space
Supplementary
Planning
Document

Approve the revised SPD

Cllr Wardle

Paul
Moore

Cllr
Meredith

Chief
Exec

Cabinet

Finance P10

Approve the Revenue
Budget Pressure Fund
requests for 2019/20 and
future years totalling
£0.157m

Cllr Brett

Julie
Murphy

Cllr Holly

Chief
Exec

Cabinet

Capital
Investment In
Schools
2020/2022

Approve the investment
programme

Cllr Heakin

Debra Kay Cllr
Meredith

Cllr Neil
Emmott

Alan
Webster &
Richard
Duddell

Basic Need Programme of
£21,831,497
Capital Programme of
£3,192,460

Chief
Exec

Cabinet

South Heywood
Junction 19 Link
Road – Current
position and

Authorise Officers to
submit a Business Case to
Transport for Greater
Manchester (TfGM) to
secure the grant funding

Cllr
Meredith

Future Financial,
Legal and
Development
matters

contribution to the South
Heywood Junction 19 Link
Road scheme from the
Greater Manchester
Combined Authority

Page 38

Chief
Exec

Cabinet (New)

Manchester
Airport Holdings
Ltd – Deferral of
Shareholder
Loan Interest

Deferral of Shareholder
Loan Interest

Cllr Brett

Julie
Murphy

Cllr Holly

Chief
Exec

Cabinet

Riverside
Development –
Smoke free zone

That the Rochdale
Riverside Development is
a smoke free zone

Cllr
Diane
Rowbotham Gardner

Cllr
Meredith

Chief
Exec

Integrated
Recommissioning Approval of prevention
Commissioning of the Adult Care contracts
Board
Prevention
Contracts

Cllr Iftikhar
Ahmed

Mike
O’Keefe

Cllr Dutton

Chief
Exec

Cabinet (new)

Woodlands View
Emergency
Culvert Repair

Approval for the
expenditure of
approximately £225k to
repair the Stanney Brook
Culvert where no budget
provision existed.

Cllr Brett

Andrew
Storey

Cllr Holly

Chief
Exec

Cabinet (new)

Rochdale
Football club

Approve an initial loan to
Denehurst Park Rochdale
Limited, secured on its
assets and guaranteed by

Cllr Brett

Neil
Thornton

Cllr Holly

Rochdale Association
Football Club.

Page 39

Chief
Exec

Cabinet (new)

Strategic
Investment Manchester
Airport Group

Approval given for further
investments

Cllr Brett

Neil
Thornton

Cllr Holly

Chief
Exec

Cabinet (new)

Norton Grange

To provide exclusive use
of the facility for a period
of 2 months, to assist with
Covid response.

Cllr
Peter
Rowbotham Maynard

Cllr Holly /
Cllr Dutton

Chief
Exec

Cabinet

Rochdale Town
Hall NLHF bid

Approve the Round 2 bid
to National Lottery
Heritage Fund to be
submitted

Cllr Brett

Jonathon
Hindle

Cllr Holly /
Cllr
Meredith

Chief
Exec

Cabinet

Rochdale
Schools PFI FM
Agreement
Amendments

Approve a new service
contract under the
Rochdale Schools PFI FM
Agreement

Cllr Heakin

Gail
Hopper

Cllr Holly /
Cllr
Meredith

